ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
April 13, 2007
7:06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Chair
Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses

Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha

Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 5

Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
limting appropriations from certain mneral revenue, relating
to the bal anced budget account, and relating to an appropriation
[imt.

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 5

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM APPROP. LI M T/ M NERAL REVENUE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

01/ 25/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 07 (H VWM JUD, FIN

04/ 04/ 07 (H VWM AT 7:00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
04/ 04/ 07 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

04/ 11/ 07 (H VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
04/ 11/ 07 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 13/ 07 (H) VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HIR 5.

DEREK M LLER, Staff

to Representative Mke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented portions of HIR 5 on behalf of
sponsor Representative Mke Kelly.

ROB CARPENTER, Fiscal Anal yst

Legi sl ative Finance Division

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HIR 5.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Conmttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:06:27 AM Present at the call to
order were Representatives Hawker, Roses, Guenberg, Seaton,
Ci ssna, WIson, and Faircl ough.

7:07:24 AM

HIR 5- CONST. AM  APPROP. LIM T/ M NERAL REVENUE

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska limting appropriations from
certain m neral revenue, relating to the balanced budget
account, and relating to an appropriation limt.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, testified
as sponsor of HIR 5. He rem nded the comrittee of the state's
dependence on fluctuating revenues from steadily declining oil
producti on. He expressed concern that future revenues would
dimnish until the start of a gas pipeline. He suggested that
HIR 5 could provide significant assistance to the state's budget
process by establishing a nechanism to control spending. The
resolution would require the legislature to incorporate oil
revenue into the budget "in any given fiscal year on a five-year
rolling average. That is we |ook back four years, and we also

|l ook a year forward ...." He opined that there is pressure on
the legislature to spend noney, but little push to require a
bal anced budget. However, he suggested that the Ilegislature

shoul d take steps to control the anobunt available for the state

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2007



to spend, especially in light of the nunerous demands nade upon
it to increase funding in many areas.

7:13:53 AM

CHAIR HAWKER clarified that the "m neral revenue" in HIR 5 would
include revenues from oil and gas, as well as from the
extraction of other mneral resources of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY agreed with the aforenentioned statenent,
and went on to say there was sone consideration given to
expanding the resolution to include all state resources.

7:15: 01 AM

DEREK M LLER, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, explained the
process by which the balanced budget process of HIR 5 would
wor k. He referred to a PowerPoint presentation which was
provided to the conmttee and explained that slide 2 pictorially
represents the mechanics of HIR 5. Once a five-year average of
m neral revenues is calculated, the legislature has the ability
to nove funds from a Bal anced Budget Account (BBA) to fund any

shortfall in the five year average. For exanple, if the five
year average is $3 billion, but the state only receives $2.5
billion one year, the legislature by nmgjority vote can transfer

$500 mllion fromthe BBA into its available funds. The BBA is
available only to receive funds in excess of the five-year
average, or to fund shortfalls should revenue fall below the

five year average. If the legislature wants to spend above the
five year average, it nmust take the noney from the
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF) or other sources. | f

the revenues received are nore than the five-year average, the
excess is automatically transferred to the BBA-no vote is

requi red, he explained. He said that the BBA only has the
capacity to hold two year's worth of appropriations; when the
bal ance exceeds two years of appropriations, the excess wll be

transferred i nto the CBRF.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH relayed her wunderstanding that the
paynent into the CBRF is a "repaynent” of past draws.

MR. M LLER agreed with the aforenentioned statenent.
MR. MLLER further expanded on the nethod of calculating the
five-year average, referring to slide 4. Based on petrol eum

revenues from the past four years and the predicted revenue for
the next year, the five year average for fiscal year (FY) 2008

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2007



would be $2.9 billion. He reiterated that since the BBA is
l[imted to a maxi mum anmount equal to oil appropriations for two
years - any excess will be transferred to the CBRF.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what happens once the CBRF is paid
back.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY replied that the excess funds would
continue to go into the CBRF.

7:21: 28 AM

MR MLLER explained that HIR 5 does not touch the "sacred
cows," such as any aspect of the Permanent Fund or Anerada Hess

account . It is also not "subject to the CBRF sweep." He
summari zed that HIR 5 is a fiscal responsibility resolution that
encourages "a better budgeting system"” It provides a sinple

but effective nmechanism to hel p save budget surpluses and avoid
deficits and elimnates the need for conplicated "parking" of
excess funds to avoid the three-quarter |legislative vote
required to access the CBRF. He opined that a constitutional
amendnent is recommended because the |egislature can overpower,
ignore, or change statutory appropriation constraints. Further,
this approach lets the citizens voice their opinion concerning
this sinple fiscal framework. He suggested the HIR 5 s approach
would be conpatible with the Percent of Market Value (POW)
approach should that concept be adopted with regard to permanent
fund earnings.

7:23: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked about the how the mechanisns in HIR 5
woul d acconmodat e a POW appr oach.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY i ndicated that the approach in HIR 5 would
accomobdat e a POW approach, and woul d not prevent or affect it.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked how the state would provide an
i nfusi on of cash for energency situations.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY suggested that in an energency situation,
the state could access the CBRF, although he recognized that
process could be slow, especially if the emergency arose when
the | egislature was not in session.

MR. M LLER opined that it nay be possible to insert a provision
in HHR 5 to allow fund access in energency situations. He

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2007



stated that the sponsor does not desire a "laundry list" of
exceptions however.

7:26:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether there would be a nechani sm by
which to ever adequately fund the education account so as to
forward fund education if the approach in HIR 5 was passed prior
the full funding of the education account.

MR. M LLER said no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there have been simlar
constitutional resolutions proposed in the past, and that these
prior resolutions had spendi ng exceptions within them

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opined that if a fund is established with
very few exceptions, it will be nore likely to remain a solvent
f und.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that the legislature is a
reactive institution and therefore many of its spending
deci sions are based on the legitinate needs of its constituents.
He noted that the Al aska Constitution provides for a strong
executive branch, and that the approach in HIR 5 "ratchets it
up” one step further as it makes revenues unavailable to the
executive branch as well as to the |egislature.

7:33:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that this approach nay require the
| egi slature to access the CBRF in nore instances.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said that the approach of HIR 5 inposes
discipline on the legislature and will keep the legislature from
having to draw fromthe CBRF. He relayed his understanding that
accessing the CBRF 1is contentious, difficult, and costs
approxi mately $20 million.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that his understanding is that
the legislature can only constitutionally appropriate out of the
BBA to the five-year average anount. If the needs of the state
are greater, the CBRF is "100 percent available on an three-
gquarter vote." He suggested that the effect of the resolution
is to constitutionally "rat hole" funds away in the CBRF. He
guestioned whether the effect is to provide budget discipline,

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2007



or whether it just directs the legislature to a different source
of funds.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY referenced HB 125 and opined that the

message behind that bill is that constituents desire a fiscal
pl an. He opined that this resolution is positive step in the
nmove towards |ong-term fiscal planning. He opined that the
| egislature tends to spend any surplus funds. The resol ution

directs the legislature to make spending decisions based on a
five-year income average, he indicated.

7:41:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the spending |limtations in
the resolution would have any effect between now and when the
revenues start comng in from the gas pipeline, noting that,
since future revenues are projected to decline, the average
income will be higher than current incone. He opined that the
resolution would not really have an effect wuntil the gas
pi peline begins operation since the average incone is expected
to decline after FY 07.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY indi cated agreenent with the aforenentioned

poi nt . He rem nded the commttee that the price of oil is
volatile, and noted that world events can cause significant
fluctuations in the price of oil. He opined that it is
i npossible to anticipate when and how nmuch oil prices nmay

fluctuate, therefore his proposal is nore of a "50 year plan" to
accomodat e the varyi ng, but unpredictable price of oil.

7:44:54 AM

CHAI R HAWKER noted that under this approach, noney is set aside
during tinmes of high revenues to offset shortfalls in tinmes of
| ow revenues.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA rem nded nenbers that the |egislature has
a history of regularly depositing noney into the permanent fund.
She expressed concern about a possible danpening effect on sone
i ssues, such as inprovenent of nmental health care, if there are
too many limts on spending.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opi ned t hat t he bill supports
sustainability of spending decisions and |essens the state's
reliance on the fluctuating price of oil by establishing funds
that provide a regular nmethod of spending. This may result in

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2007



an inproved ability to structure l|ong-range policy goals, he
not ed.

7:52:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON noted that there are significant deferred
mai nt enance issues in the state and expressed concern that
| eveling the budget too nmuch will continue to make it difficult
for agencies to address nmai ntenance issues.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY offered his belief that inposition of
spending discipline wll allow the legislature to address
chronic problenms such as deferred maintenance because it wll
allow for nore noney to go into the CBRF, which would then be
available for a big "catch up" on issues such as deferred
mai nt enance. He suggested that certain itens, such as
mai nt enance, should be in the operating budget, not the capita
budget .

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH spoke in favor of HIR 5, noting that
that its approach allows policymkers to design future |ong-term
spendi ng pl ans. She opined that this approach does not hanper
the ability of the state to use POW to nmnage the permanent
f und. She suggested that the approach of HIR 5 forces the
| egi slature and the governor to |ook at revenue sources besides
oil and mneral sources which would pronote diversity in the
state's revenue stream She also expressed support for
repaynent of funds back into the CBRF. She suggested that a
budget surplus in the next few years could be directed towards
some forward funding concerns, such as education and health
i ssues.

8:00: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked who would nanage the investnent
account referred to in HIR5 page 2, lines 8-9.

ROB CARPENTER, Fiscal Analyst, Legislative Finance Division,
Legislative Affairs Agency, explained that the Treasury D vision
of the Departnment of Revenue currently manages the CBRF and he
assunes that the sanme nechani sm woul d apply to managenent of the
BBA.

MR. MLLER agreed that the intent was for the BBA to be nmanaged
i ke the CBRF.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE RCSES rel ayed that while he supports the concept
in HHR 5, he has sonme concern regarding the relationship of this
approach with other serious financial issues facing the state,
such as the Public Enployees' Retirement System (PERS) and
Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS) liabilities. He said that the
state may need to be able to provide an infusion of cash in
certain wunpredictable situations wherein the state nay have
greater liability than antici pated.

8:05: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opined that if the legislature accepts the
di scipline inposed by the bill, it will be able to build the
funds necessary to support a long-term spending plan. He

suggested that his approach is nore of a 50 year plan. He said
he supports forward funding of education needs, yet indicated

that the current budgeting nechanisms wll not provide a
solution to all loomng long-term financial issues. He offered
that the people of the state may be reluctant to allow the
| egislature to wuse permanent fund earnings wuntil spending

discipline like that proposed in HIR 5 has been in place and
operated for a time. He indicated that fiscal discipline by the
| egi slature would engender public trust in the legislature's
spendi ng deci si ons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES reninded the commttee that the |egislature
is working very hard to conme up with a solution to the unfunded

pension liabilities. If the legislature puts forth sonme
nmechani smto reduce the pension fund liabilities, it will becone
part of the budget process. He offered that once included in
t he budget, the spending to pay down pension liabilities becones
sustainable if the assunptions are correct. He suggested the

fixes to the pension plan and other issues should be determ ned
prior to inplenmentation of the nechani sm suggested by HIR 5 so
that the spending is built into the five year plan.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY replied that "with sonmething Ilike this,

there's never the perfect year to put it in place.” He
suggested it my be possible to use the CBRF to fund other
loomng financial issues, such as paynent of the PERS\TRS
liabilities.

8:13:28 AM

CHAIR HAWKER relayed that since a proposal to change the
constitution is a profound and serious matter, it requires a
very detailed examnation of all aspects of the proposed

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2007



changes. He expressed support of the concept presented in the
resolution, but indicated it needed further exam nation. He
noted that the resolution does not propose changing the three-
guarter vote requirenent to access the CBRF, which may be an
aspect that could use further consideration. He suggested the
concept in HIR 5 could be a starting point to craft a
constitutionally structured fiscal plan.

8:17:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that recently the legislature
has not appropriated noney from the permanent fund earnings
reserve account. He noted that there are currently proposed
| arge resource devel opnent projects in the state, and expressed
concern that the revenues from those projects may not be
available to pay off the inpacts of those projects since the
revenue stream would be limted to the five year average from
oil and gas revenues. He offered that his understanding of the
mechanism in HIR 5 is that any incone above the five-year
average would not be available to the legislature, but would
roll to the CBRF.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opined that the sequestered part of
revenues would be considered in determning the five-year
aver age.

8:22: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that once a revenue stream starts, it
woul d be included in the determ nation of the five-year average.
The five-year average also includes revenue predictions for the
next vyear. The revenue would be "sequestered” only if it were
not calculated into the projection of the next year's revenue
i nconme, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to HIR 5, page 2, lines 9-10
which seens to indicate that the nobney in the BBA is not
avai |l abl e for spending.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY agreed that the noney is to be used to nake
up shortfalls and is limted to tw ce the annual earnings. He
said that the point of HIR 5 is to take the operating revenues
and put restrictions on spending so as to level the state's
spendi ng patterns.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the only way to access the BBA
fund woul d be by another constitutional anendnent.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -9- April 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY answered yes, but went on to say that if
one assumes the CBRF is exhausted, one could also assune that
the BBA would not have rmnuch noney in it. He predicted that
situation would indicate the state is in serious financial
straits.

8:27:45 AM

CHAI R HAWKER explained that it would require a constitutiona
anmendnent to invade or change the corpus of permanent fund. He
rem nded the commttee that only the earnings are available for
appropriation.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed support for the concept in HIR 5
and agreed that it is necessary to inplenment sone kind of fisca
pl anni ng structure. She suggested that the resolution requires
a fiscal note to educate the public as to the bill's effect.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG expressed sone reservation wth
anending the constitution and with limting the legislature's
options. He suggested that the fiscal restraint proposed by the
bill may be at the expense of being able to pay for other
wort hwhi | e causes. He said he is nore receptive to |ooking at
options that allow for nore flexibility.

8:38:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES offered that what is being proposed is a
bal anced i ncome resolution because it does not address spending,
it addresses only incone. He noted that the legislature could
still go to the CBRF or other sources for funding. He opi ned
that this type of approach may have an effect simlar to a
muni ci pal tax cap. He relayed that nmunicipalities did not stop
spendi ng noney because of tax caps, but instead used bonds or
ot her nmechani snms to pay for projects.

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLY opined that tax caps are like a
sl edgehamer, while the approach in HIR 5 is nore finely tuned
and responsive than a tax cap. He set forth that his proposal
responds to tines of prosperity and tinmes of |owered revenues by
| eveling spending. He said this approach does require
discipline and fiscal planning in a sinple, straightforward
manner .

8:44: 27 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 10- April 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that the resolution seens to be a
| evelized inconme resolution nore than a balanced budget
resol ution. Furthernore, it only concerns resource incone but
does not effect other revenue sources. He suggested that other
i ncome sources, such as taxes, can provide a nore predictable
i ncone stream He indicated that the legislature would |ikely
need to consider ways to "fill in" income gaps.

[HIR 5 was held in commttee.]

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
8:51:28 AM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -11- April 13, 2007



